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INTRODUCTION 

The Judicial Merit Selection Commission is charged by law to consider the 

qualifications of candidates for the judiciary.  This report details the reasons for the 

Commission's findings, as well as each candidate's qualifications as they relate to the 

Commission's evaluative criteria.  The Commission operates under the law that went into 

effect July 1, 1997, and which dramatically changed the powers and duties of the 

Commission.  One component of this law is that the Commission’s finding of “qualified” 

or “not qualified” is binding on the General Assembly.  The Commission is also cognizant 

of the need for members of the General Assembly to be able to differentiate between 

candidates and, therefore, has attempted to provide as detailed a report as possible. 

The Judicial Merit Selection Commission is composed of ten members, four of 

whom are non-legislators.  The Commission has continued the more in-depth screening 

format started in 1997.  The Commission has asked candidates their views on issues 

peculiar to service on the court to which they seek election.  These questions were posed 

in an effort to provide members of the General Assembly with more information about 

candidates and the candidates’ thought processes on issues relevant to their candidacies.  

The Commission has also engaged in a more probing inquiry into the depth of a 

candidate's experience in areas of practice that are germane to the office he or she is 

seeking.  The Commission feels that candidates should have familiarity with the subject 

matter of the courts for which they offer, and feels that candidates’ responses should 

indicate their familiarity with most major areas of the law with which they will be 

confronted. 

The Commission also used the Citizens Committees on Judicial Qualifications as an 

adjunct of the Commission.  Since the decisions of our judiciary play such an important 

role in people’s personal and professional lives, the Commission believes that all South 

Carolinians should have a voice in the selection of the state’s judges.  It was this desire 

for broad-based grassroots participation that led the Commission to create the Citizens 

Committees on Judicial Qualifications.  These committees, composed of people from a 

broad range of experiences (lawyers, teachers, businessmen, bankers, and advocates for 



 

 

various organizations; members of these committees are also diverse in their racial and 

gender backgrounds), were asked to advise the Commission on the judicial candidates in 

their regions.  Each regional committee interviewed the candidates from its assigned area 

and also interviewed other individuals in that region who were familiar with the candidate 

either personally or professionally.  Based on those interviews and its own investigation, 

each committee provided the Commission with a report on their assigned candidates 

based on the Commission’s evaluative criteria.  The Commission then used these reports 

as a tool for further investigation of the candidate if the committee’s report so warranted.  

Summaries of these reports have also been included in the Commission’s report for your 

review. 

The Commission conducts a thorough investigation of each candidate's 

professional, personal, and financial affairs, and holds public hearings during which each 

candidate is questioned on a wide variety of issues.  The Commission's investigation 

focuses on the following evaluative criteria:  constitutional qualifications, ethical fitness, 

professional and academic ability, character, reputation, physical health, mental health, 

and judicial temperament.  The Commission's investigation includes the following: 

(1) survey of the bench and bar; 

(2) SLED and FBI investigation; 

(3) credit investigation; 

(4) grievance investigation; 

(5) study of application materials; 

(6) verification of ethics compliance; 

(7) search of newspaper articles; 

(8) conflict of interest investigation; 

(9) court schedule study; 

(10) study of appellate record; 

(11) court observation; and 

(12) investigation of complaints. 

 

 While the law provides that the Commission must make findings as to 

qualifications, the Commission views its role as also including an obligation to consider 

candidates in the context of the judiciary on which they would serve and, to some 

degree, govern.  To that end, the Commission inquires as to the quality of justice 

delivered in the courtrooms of South Carolina and seeks to impart, through its 



 

 

questioning, the view of the public as to matters of legal knowledge and ability, judicial 

temperament, and the absoluteness of the Judicial Canons of Conduct as to recusal for 

conflict of interest, prohibition of ex parte communication, and the disallowance of the 

acceptance of gifts.  However, the Commission is not a forum for reviewing the individual 

decisions of the state’s judicial system absent credible allegations of a candidate’s 

violations of the Judicial Canons of Conduct, the Rules of Professional Conduct, or any of 

the Commission’s nine evaluative criteria that would impact a candidate’s fitness for 

judicial service. 

The Commission expects each candidate to possess a basic level of legal 

knowledge and ability, to have experience that would be applicable to the office sought, 

and to exhibit a strong adherence to codes of ethical behavior.  These expectations are all 

important, and excellence in one category does not make up for deficiencies in another. 

Routine questions related to compliance with ethical Canons governing ethics and 

financial interests are now administered through a written questionnaire mailed to 

candidates and completed by them in advance of each candidate’s staff interview.  These 

issues were no longer automatically made a part of the public hearing process unless a 

concern or question was raised during the investigation of the candidate.  The necessary 

public record of a candidate’s pledge to uphold the Canons, etc. is his or her completed 

and sworn questionnaire. 

 Written examinations of the candidates’ knowledge of judicial practice and procedure 

were given at the time of candidate interviews with staff and graded on a “blind” basis by a 

panel of four persons designated by the Chairman.  In assessing each candidate's 

performance on these practice and procedure questions, the Commission has placed 

candidates in either the “failed to meet expectations” or “met expectations” category.  The 

Commission feels that these categories should accurately impart the candidate's 

performance on the practice and procedure questions. 

This report is the culmination of weeks of investigatory work and public hearings.  

The Commission takes its responsibilities seriously, as it believes that the quality of 



 

 

justice delivered in South Carolina's courtrooms is directly affected by the thoroughness 

of its screening process.   

This report conveys the Commission's findings as to the qualifications of one 

candidate, Judge F.P. “Charlie” Segars-Andrews, currently offering for re-election to the 

Family Court, Ninth Judicial Circuit, Seat 1. 



 

 

        F. P. “Charlie” Segars-Andrews 

Family Court, Ninth Judicial Circuit, Seat 1 

 

Commission’s Findings: NOT QUALIFIED 

 

(1) Constitutional Qualifications: 

Based on the Commission’s investigation, Judge Segars-Andrews meets the 

qualifications prescribed by law for judicial service as a Family Court judge. 

 

Judge Segars-Andrews was born in 1957.  She is 52 years old and a 

resident of Mt. Pleasant, South Carolina.  Judge Segars-Andrews provided in 

her application that she has been a resident of South Carolina for at least the 

immediate past five years and has been a licensed attorney in South Carolina 

since 1984. 

 

(2) Ethical Fitness: 

The Commission’s investigation revealed evidence that Judge Segar-

Andrews’ conduct caused an appearance of impropriety that led a litigant 

not only to question Judge Segars-Andrews’ ability to render a fair and 

impartial decision, but also to lose faith in the integrity of this state’s judicial 

system. 

 

Judge Segars-Andrews had one complaint filed against her by Mr. William R. 

Simpson, Jr., who had been a litigant in her court.1  Also testifying before 

the Commission concerning the complaint was Mr. Simpson’s attorney 

Steven S. McKenzie, who appeared because he was subpoenaed by the 

Commission. 

 

The complaint against Judge Segars-Andrews concerned proceedings she 

held involving Mr. William R. Simpson, Jr., who was the plaintiff.  

Specifically, she heard the remaining issues of equitable division, child 

support, attorneys fees, and costs in the matter of William R. Simpson, Jr. v 

Becky H. Simpson and Wade Ingle, Docket Nos. 2004-DR-14-315 and 2004-

DR-14-243 (Order dated June 8, 2006) (Entered into the Record at the 

Commission’s Public Hearing, Thursday, November 4, 2009, Vol. III - PM, 

p.8, lines 18-22, designated as Exhibit. 1A). 

 

                                      

 
1 Upon receipt of Mr. Simpson’s complaint, the Commission provided Judge Segars-Andrews with a 

copy of the complaint. At the time, she requested an application package for re-election; she was 

also furnished a copy of the Commission’s Policies and Procedures Manual, which included the 

Commission’s Rules related to the procedure for handling complaints against judicial candidates. 



 

 

Judge Segars-Andrews heard the case on February 14 and 16, 2006, and 

was ready to make an order concerning the disposition of the marital 

property when she received a motion on March 28, 2006, from Mr. 

McKenzie asking that she recuse herself because an associate of her 

husband’s law firm had testified concerning attorneys fees in a previous 

divorce case involving Mr. Simpson’s parents.  At a hearing in Sumter on 

April 14, 2006, Judge Segars-Andrews denied Mr. McKenzie’s motion. 

 

At the Commission’s Public Hearing, Judge Segars-Andrews explained to 

staff counsel that Mr. McKenzie’s motion was “just not enough for me to 

recuse myself.”  (Commission’s Public Hearing, Thursday, November 4, 

2009, Vol. III - PM, p.26, lines 6-7).  In addition, when questioned by the 

Commissioners, Judge Segars-Andrews explained: 

 “But when they immediately sent that motion for me to recuse myself 

and it was for, in my opinion, a very frivolous reason, I wanted out of 

this case.  But I wasn’t going to at that point, because it was 

frivolous. 

 “But when I said something to my husband, he reminded me of this 

other business dealing, even though it was past, I felt like that was 

enough for me to get out.”  (Commission’s Public Hearing, Thursday, 

November 4, 2009, Vol. III - PM, p.33, lines 13-21). 

 

In her testimony before the Commission, Judge Segars-Andrews stated that 

she “mentioned” the motion to recuse herself to her husband and he said,  

“Well, you know, we’ve -- Lon has worked with him on other things.  

And he reminded me of a case that happened a year before.  And so I 

went back on the record during this hearing.  I said, ‘Your motion is 

frivolous, but I need to recuse myself because my husband’s law 

partner and Mr. McLaren had worked together on this other case, and 

I need to recuse myself.’”  (Commission’s Public Hearing, Thursday, 

November 4, 2009, Vol. III - PM, p.26, lines 9-16). 

 

When asked by the Commissioners about the size of the fee that came to 

her husband’s law firm, Judge Segars-Andrews responded, “I think it was 

probably around [$]300,000.  That’s my guess.”  (Commission’s Public 

Hearing, Thursday, November 4, 2009, Vol. III - PM, p.36, lines 3-4).  She 

was asked by Professor Freeman if that was her husband’s share or if the 

fee were split.  She replied, “I think that was probably my husband’s share 

on that case.”  (Commission’s Public Hearing, Thursday, November 4, 2009, 

Vol. III - PM, p.36, lines 5-8). 

 

At a hearing on April 14, 2006, Judge Segars-Andrews told the parties 

about the relationship with her husband’s law firm and said that she 

intended to recuse herself.  A transcript of that hearing was included with 



 

 

the complaint and also is available in the Record on Appeal, Volume I, in 

Simpson II, (the appeal of Simpson v. Simpson taken to the Court of Appeals 

on May 6, 2007).2 

 

In that transcript, Judge Segars-Andrews insisted several times that she 

intended to recuse herself from the case and that the case would have to be 

retried.  (Record on Appeal, Volume I, in Simpson II, p. 135, lines 6-14; 

Judge Segars-Andrews: “It should have been disclosed, I didn’t think about 

it, so I didn’t disclose it.  I don’t see how I can remedy that.” p. 137, line 6-

7; Judge Segars-Andrews: “I mean, if you all want to do some research on 

it, I’ll be glad to look at some research, but, I just don’t think -- I think it 

should have been disclosed; I didn’t think about it, I didn’t disclose it, and I 

don’t see how I can remedy that.” p. 137, lines 23-25 and p. 138, line 1). 

 

At the hearing, Mr. McKenzie told Judge Segars-Andrews, “. . . Your Honor, 

had my client known about this -- We didn’t know there was any association 

at all -- I didn’t know your husband even practiced law, and didn’t know 

Your Honor; and, you know, had we known that, any association with Mr. 

McLaren, we would have asked that you recuse yourself.”  Judge Segars-

Andrews responded, “And, I think they have that right.”  (Record on Appeal, 

Volume I, in Simpson II, p. 138, lines 14-20.) 

 

The Judge’s rationale for recusal was that, if a disclosure of the relationship 

had been made to Mr. Simpson, he would have had the opportunity to ask 

her to recuse herself prior to the hearing and disposition of the case.  By 

failing to make the disclosure, Mr. Simpson had no opportunity to ask for 

recusal.  Even though the case almost had been concluded, Judge Segars-

Andrews indicated that she knew of no way to remedy Mr. Simpson’s ability 

to request her recusal other than to have a new trial.  (Judge Segars-

Andrews: “. . . Frankly, I think that I’m doing the wrong thing for both of 

your clients.  I think it was an unbiased ruling, and it’s going to end up 

costing both of your clients more.  And, I feel -- you know, I feel bad about 

it, but I’ve got to follow the rules . . . .”  Record on Appeal, Volume I, in 

Simpson II, p. 138, lines 2-6.) 

 

Mr. McLaren asked to submit information to Judge Segars-Andrews on the 

subject and she agreed to receive briefing, but indicated that she had 

determined to recuse herself.  (Judge Segars-Andrews: “I’ll be glad to look at 

                                      

 
2The Simpson v. Simpson appeal was bifurcated and resulted in two Court of Appeals decisions, 

one concerning the merits, Simpson v. Simpson, 377 S.C. 527, 660 S.E. 2d 278 (Ct. App. 2008), 

and the other concerning the judge’s recusal, Simpson v. Simpson, 377 S.C. 519, 660 S.E. 2d 274 

(Ct. App. 2008). Mrs. Becky Simpson was represented by James McLaren and Jan Warner in the 

proceedings before Judge Segars-Andrews. 



 

 

anything, but I’ll tell you, I’ve been -- I have looked at the Rules over and 

over, because I feel like I really have done a disservice by not disclosing this 

and causing your clients to have to go through another trial.”  Record on 

Appeal, Volume I, in Simpson II, p. 139, lines 14-18.) 

 

Following the hearing, opposing counsel submitted a memorandum along 

with an affidavit, dated April 24, 2006, from Professor Nathan Crystal of the 

University of South Carolina School of Law.  The memorandum and affidavit 

indicated that, under the Judicial Canons, Judge Segars-Andrews was not 

required to disclose the relationship and was in fact under a duty to hear and 

decide the case. 

 

The memorandum and affidavit were given to Mr. McKenzie, who sent a 

letter to Judge Segars-Andrews questioning the interpretation and pointing 

out that opposing counsel had prior knowledge of the relationship and could 

have disclosed it.  (Letter dated April 25, 2006, from Steven S. McKenzie to 

Judge Segars-Andrews.) 

 

Following receipt of those materials, Judge Segar-Andrews sent a fax on 

May 3, 2006, to the attorneys in the case stating:  

 “After reviewing the memorandum provided from the defendant’s 

counsel in this matter and the cannons [sic] this court determines that 

it has a duty to rule in this case and that there was no duty to disclose 

the working relationship between McLaren and Andrews and Andrews 

and Shull.”  (Fax dated May 3, 2006, and sent to Steven McKenzie, 

Scott Robinson, Jan Warner, Carrie Warner, Jim McLaren, and James 

Stoddard.)   

 

She also requested opposing counsel, Mr. McLaren, to prepare the order and 

give Mr. McKenzie twenty-four hours to review it. 

 

Mr. Simpson then brought a complaint against Judge Segars-Andrews to the 

Office of Judicial Conduct on September 20, 2006.  Judge Segars-Andrews 

submitted a response on November 14, 2006. The complaint was summarily 

dismissed on November 22, 2006. 

 

On appeal, the South Carolina Court of Appeals found that Judge Segars-

Andrews had not abused her discretion in making the division of marital 

property and an award of almost $80,000 in costs and attorneys fees to Mr. 

Simpson’s wife.  Simpson v. Simpson, 377 S.C. 527, 660 S.E. 2d 278 (Ct. 

App. 2008). 

 

In a separate opinion, the Court of Appeals held Mr. Simpson failed to 

present any evidence of prejudice and bias on Judge Segars-Andrew’s 



 

 

behalf, which would require her to recuse herself and was under a duty to 

hear and decide the case.  Simpson v. Simpson, 377 S.C. 519, 660 S.E. 2d 

274 (Ct. App. 2008). 

 

At the Public Hearing on November 4, 2009, Mr. Simpson revealed, when 

questioned by the Commission, that he was a farmer in Manning and did not 

know Judge Segars-Andrews until she came to Family Court for the County 

of Clarendon to hear his case (Commission’s Public Hearing, Thursday, 

November 4, 2009, Vol. III - AM, pp.102-103).  He testified that had he 

known in advance about the six-figure amount the judge’s spouse’s law firm 

received from its connections with the opposing counsel’s law firm, he 

would have asked that the Judge recuse herself (Mr. Simpson: “She said she 

had read over the Canons and realized it was her duty not to sit if it would 

have been disclosed.  I would have had the option to have not had her hear 

my case, which I would not have.  I was never given that option.” 

Commission’s Public Hearing, Thursday, November 4, 2009, Vol. III - AM, 

p.105, line 14-18)  Because she remained on the case, he thought he did not 

receive a fair trial (Mr. Simpson: “I do not see where I was fairly judged.” 

Commission’s Public Hearing, Thursday, November 4, 2009, Vol. III - AM, 

p.108, line 25 and p. 109, line 1).  He felt this money had hindered his case, 

along with the undisclosed relationship between the opposing counsel and 

the judge’s spouse’s law firm (Commission’s Public Hearing, Thursday, 

November 4, 2009, Vol. III - AM, p.108).  He testified that he came away 

from the experience with a whole different view of the justice system (Mr. 

Simpson: “But not only that, I have a whole different outlook of the court 

system.  Once you find out the different connections and all, I thought the 

judicial system was fair and honest.  I do not have that feeling today.”  Mr. 

Simpson: “I do not see where I was fairly judged.” Commission’s Public 

Hearing, Thursday, November 4, 2009, Vol. III - AM, p.109, lines 8-12).  He 

testified that, instead of relying on things being fair, he now viewed the 

system as a good-old-boy network.  (Mr. Simpson: “And once we called it 

out on the table in front of her, she recused herself.  And then now it’s 

another cover up of all the good old-boy-system, I feel like, and it’s cost me 

a lot of money and a lot of things had taken place and this is not right.  It 

don’t smell good.  It don’t look good.” Commission’s Public Hearing, 

Thursday, November 4, 2009, Vol. III - AM, p.108, lines 11-16) 

 

Under subpoena, Mr. McKenzie, Mr. Simpson’s attorney, testified that Judge 

Segars-Andrews denied his motion to recuse, which was based on the fact 

that Mr. Shull, a law partner of Mr. Andrews (the Judge’s husband) gave an 

affidavit concerning attorneys fees in Mr. Simpson’s parents’ case 

(Commission’s Public Hearing, Thursday, November 4, 2009, Vol. III - AM, 

p. 132).  Mr. Simpson was a party in his parents’ divorce case due to his 

interest in the farming business he owned with his father.  In addition, the 



 

 

same attorneys who represented Mr. Simpson’s mother in his parents’ 

divorce also came to represent Mr. Simpson’s wife in his divorce and 

equitable distribution proceeding. 

 

Mr. McKenzie testified at the hearing where his motion for recusal was 

denied that Judge Segars-Andrews stated she needed to disclose something 

she had forgotten; that her husband’s firm and Mr. McLaren had shared a 

large six-figure fee and the parties were going to have to try the case over.  

Mr. McKenzie explained that, as he is from a small town, when a judge tells 

him that on the record, he “takes it as the gospel.”  (Commission’s Public 

Hearing, Thursday, November 4, 2009, Vol. III - AM, p. 132)  He stated it 

never occurred to him she would reverse her recusal, even after he got 

Professor Crystal’s affidavit (Commission’s Public Hearing, Thursday, 

November 4, 2009, Vol. III - AM, p. 134).  According to Mr. McKenzie, it is 

an almost impossible task to show actual prejudice, which is what the Court 

of Appeals opinion indicated must be shown (Commission’s Public Hearing, 

Thursday, November 4, 2009, Vol. III - AM, p. 134). 

 

In addition, Mr. McKenzie told the Commission that, within five weeks of 

submitting a complaint to the Office of Judicial Conduct, his client received a 

letter summarily dismissing “the complaint finding no merit and nothing the 

judge had done wrong.”  (Commission’s Public Hearing, Thursday, November 

4, 2009, Vol. III - PM, p. 13, lines 22-24.)    Further, he testified, “I actually 

received a call from Henry Richardson who basically told me this case was 

not going to be investigated, they were not even going to open up the file, 

and it was going to be summarily dismissed.”  (Commission’s Public Hearing, 

Thursday, November 4, 2009, Vol. III - PM, p. 15, lines 9-14) 

 

When Judge Segars-Andrews was asked to respond to the complaint, she 

submitted her typewritten notes from the hearings held on February 14 and 

16, 2006.  The complaint had alleged that she had been involved in instant 

messaging on the day Mr. Simpson’s case was presented.  In addition, Mr. 

McKenzie reported seeing her sign a Valentine’s Day card on the bench.  

Judge Segars-Andrews admitted that she probably signed a card, but “I paid 

very close attention and took very detailed notes.”  (Commission’s Public 

Hearing, Thursday, November 4, 2009, Vol. III - PM, p. 23, lines 10-11.) 

 

The Commissioners asked Judge Segars-Andrews whether her actions in so 

strongly indicating she would recuse herself and then reversing course to 

continue to hear the case gave the appearance of impropriety.  Judge 

Segars-Andrews testified that she followed the law (Commission’s Public 

Hearing, Thursday, November 4, 2009, Vol. III - PM, pp. 27-28), as 

evidenced by the Court of Appeals decision upholding her actions.  She 

explained she wanted out of the case, but felt Crystal’s affidavit and brief 



 

 

showed she had a duty to sit (Commission’s Public Hearing, Thursday, 

November 4, 2009, Vol. III - PM, p. 32).  When asked, in light of hearing Mr. 

Simpson’s complaint if her opinion about the matter had changed, she 

testified that she would have had a hearing to inform the parties she was 

continuing with the case. (Commission’s Public Hearing, Thursday, 

November 4, 2009, Vol. III - PM, pp. 83-85.) 

 

The Commission reconvened on December 2, 2009, at Judge Segars-

Andrews’ request to consider whether the Commission should reopen the 

hearing regarding Judge Segars-Andrews’ qualifications.  At that hearing, the 

Commission received testimony from Judge Segars-Andrews and considered, 

as well as thoroughly studied, the four affidavits she offered concerning the 

facts of the Simpson complaint.3   

 

The four affidavits offered into the record by Judge Segars-Andrews 

included: 1) Nathan M. Crystal, who reaffirmed the opinion that he provided 

on behalf of Becky Simpson on the issue of recusal, that is, that Judge 

Segars-Andrews was not disqualified from deciding the case based on either 

Mr. Shull’s having provided an affidavit in the case of Mr. Simpson’s father 

or Mr. Shull’s previous working relationship with Ms. Simpson’s attorney, 

and also that Judge Segars-Andrews’ impartiality cannot be questioned, as 

the decision in the Simpson case had no financial or personal impact on her; 

2) James T. McLaren, attorney for Becky Simpson, who provided a timeline 

of the events that transpired regarding both Simpson trials as well as 

provided information regarding his former business relationship with Mr. 

Shull; 3) Judge William Howard, who was not involved in the cases but 

offered his opinion on the legal and ethical issues facing Judge Segars-

Andrews and commented that she acted appropriately; 4) David Gravely, a 

Family Court lawyer, who reviewed Judge Segars-Andrews’ order in the 

Simpson matter regarding the equitable apportionment and attorney fees and 

found that she acted appropriately. 

 

A motion was made by Professor John P. Freeman to reopen the hearing on 

qualifications and failed for lack of a second.  At the hearing on December 2, 

2009, Ms. Amy Johnson McLester and Rep. David J. Mack, III, voted to find 

                                      

 
3 Judge Segars-Andrews contended that she did not have the opportunity to present evidence on 

her behalf regarding the Simpson complaint at the November 3, 2009, Public Hearing. Rule 23 of 

the Procedural Rules for the Judicial Merit Selection Commission provides: “candidates and 

witnesses may be accompanied by counsel; however, counsel cannot participate in the hearings.” 

While character witnesses are not permitted, witnesses who can respond to the allegations made 

against a judicial candidate are permitted. In an attempt to be overly fair to Judge Segars-Andrews, 

the Commission agreed to allow and carefully considered the four affidavits offered at the December 

2, 2009, hearing by the Judge on her behalf regarding the Simpson matter. 



 

 

Judge Segars-Andrews qualified.  The vote of the Commission was seven to 

three to find Judge Segars-Andrews unqualified. 

 

Commission’s Finding 

It is the Commission’s finding that Judge Segars-Andrews demonstrated an 

understanding of how the Canons of Judicial Conduct have been interpreted; 

however, in abruptly reversing her decision about recusal, based upon a 

submission from opposing counsel who had a financial and continuing 

relationship with her husband’s law firm, she raised suspicions about her 

impartiality that were compounded by connections between opposing 

counsel and her husband’s law firm and by her service on the board of the 

Office of Judicial Conduct.  At the Family Court hearing on April 14, 2006,  

where she revealed the six-figure financial connection between her 

husband’s law firm and opposing counsel, Judge Segars-Andrews 

vehemently insisted that she could not set the situation right for Mr. 

Simpson and that her only alternative was to let him have a new trial.  When 

she failed to provide him with that alternative and gave only a perfunctory 

explanation that she was relying on opposing counsel’s submission, she 

created an atmosphere of distrust that made Mr. Simpson construe both her 

ruling and the system that authorized and sanctioned it as corruptible and 

capable of manipulation by persons with connections to a judge or a judge’s 

spouse. 

 

For this reason, the Commission must find Judge Segars-Andrews 

unqualified.  Professor Freeman dissents from the Commission’s finding, and 

Ms. McLester and Rep. Mack, now concur with Professor Freeman’s dissent.  

Professor Freeman’s vote justification is set forth below under “Commission 

Members Comments.” 

 

Ethical Fitness continued: 

Judge Segars-Andrews reported that she has not made any campaign 

expenditures. 

 

Judge Segars-Andrews testified she has not: 

(a) sought or received the pledge of any legislator prior to screening; 

(b) sought or been offered a conditional pledge of support by a legislator; 

(c) asked third persons to contact members of the General Assembly prior 

to screening. 

 

Judge Segars-Andrews testified that she is aware of the Commission’s 48-

hour rule regarding the formal and informal release of the Screening Report. 

 



 

 

(3) Professional and Academic Ability: 

The Commission found Judge Segars-Andrews to be intelligent and 

knowledgeable.  Her performance on the Commission’s practice and 

procedure questions met expectations. 

 

Judge Segars-Andrews described her past continuing legal or judicial 

education during the past five years as follows: 

Conference/CLE Name  Date 

(a) Family Court Judges Conference 04/28/2004; 

(b) Family Law Section Meeting 01/23/2004; 

(c) Judicial Conference 08/19/2004; 

(d) Judicial Oath of Office 08/19/2004; 

(e)  Family Law Section, SC Bar 1/21/2005; 

(f) 2005 Family Court Judges 04/27/2005; 

(g) 2005 Annual Judicial Conference 8/24/2005; 

(h)  South Carolina Family Court Bench 12/02/2005; 

(i) Family Law Section, SC Bar 01/27/2006; 

(j) Family Court Judges’ Conference 04/26/2006; 

(k) Mini Summit on Justice for Children 08/23/2006; 

(l) 2006 Annual Judicial Conference 08/23/2006; 

(m) Family Court Bench/Bar 12/01/2006; 

(n) Family Court Judge’s Conference 04/25/2007; 

(o) 2007 Annual Judicial Conference 08/22/2007; 

(p) Family Court Bench/Bar 12/07/2007; 

(q) Family Law Section, SC Bar 01/25/2008; 

(r) 2008 Family Court Judges Conference 04/23/2008; 

(c) Trial Lawyer’s family court section August 2008; 

(s) 2008 Judicial Conference 08/20/2008; 

(t) Commission and Attorney to… 10/21/2008; 

(u) SC Bar Meeting   01/23/09; 

(b) Family Court Judged Conference  April 2009. 

 

Judge Segars-Andrews reported that she has taught the following law-

related courses: 

(a) I have lectured at a recent pro-bono guardian ad litem program about 

what the judges expect from guardians; 

(b) I have lectured many times in the past about running a juvenile drug 

court. 

 

Judge Segars-Andrews reported that she has not published any books and/or 

articles. 

 



 

 

(4) Character: 

The Commission’s investigation of Judge Segars-Andrews did not reveal 

evidence of any criminal allegations made against her.  The Commission’s 

investigation of Judge Segars-Andrews did not indicate any evidence of a 

troubled financial status. Judge Segars-Andrews has handled her financial 

affairs responsibly. 

 

(5) Reputation: 

Judge Segars-Andrews reported that she is not rated by Martindale-Hubbell. 

 

(6) Physical Health: 

Judge Segars-Andrews appears to be physically capable of performing the 

duties of the office she seeks. 

 

(7) Mental Stability: 

Judge Segars-Andrews appears to be mentally capable of performing the 

duties of the office she seeks. 

 

(8) Experience: 

Judge Segars-Andrews was admitted to the South Carolina Bar in 1984. 

 

She gave the following account of her legal experience since graduation from 

law school: 

(a) 1984-85 - I was employed at American Mutual Fire Insurance 

Company as a litigation advisor/negotiator in the claims department; 

(b) 1985-87 - I was employed at Bell & McNeil, Attorneys at Law. During 

this period I was an associate of the law firm and handled general civil 

litigation.  I began handling primarily Family Court matters in 1986; 

(c) 1987-93 - I became a sole practitioner in 1987.  I practiced almost 

exclusively in the Family Court; 

(d) 1993-present - I was elected to the Family Court Bench of the Ninth 

Judicial Circuit seat #1, where I still remain. 

 

Judge Segars-Andrews reported that she has held the following judicial 

office: 

 “I was elected to the Family Court bench of the Ninth Judicial Circuit, 

seat 1 in May 1993 and have continued in that position since that time.” 

 

Judge Segars-Andrews provided the following list of her most significant 

orders or opinions: 

(a) IN THE INTEREST OF JERMAINE FULMORE 08-JU-10-0172 AND  08-

JU-10-0258  The appeal in this case was abandoned; 

(b) CHARLESTON COUNTY DEPARTMENT V CHRISTINA HOSKINS, 

DESHAWN POTTS. AND JOHN DOE, REPRESENTING THE UNKNOWN 



 

 

BIOLOGICAL FATHER OF Maurice Hoskins and Javarius Brown 03-DR-

10-1849 and 04-DR-10-2887 

 A notice of appeal was issued by defendants and the matter is 

pending; 

(c) SEEGER V SEEGER 2002-DR-10-0317:  A notice of appeal was filed in 

this case but it was dismissed; 

(d) CHARLESTON COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES & 

JOHN ROE AND MARY ROE VS PAMELA KING AND KENNETH KING, 

JR. IN RE:  CODY KING, a child, D/O/B 03-24-97 

 This case was reversed by the Court of Appeals in unpublished 

Opinion No. 2005-UP-155.  The Court of Appeals was then reversed 

in Opinion No. 26152; 

(e) MARY SEABROOK VS. GUY SIMMONS 03-DR-10-1318.  This order 

was affirmed by the Court of Appeals at Unpublished Opinion No. 

2005-UP-459. 

 

Judge Segars-Andrews reported the following regarding her employment 

while serving as a judge: 

  “I have been on the board of directors of Eastern Distribution, Inc., a 

family business.  I am required to attend board meetings a few times a year. 

  “I was once asked to review grant applications for the U.S. Justice 

Department.  These applications were for drug court grants.  I earned 

$1,000.” 

 

(9) Judicial Temperament: 

 The Commission believes that based on the record, Judge Segars-Andrews’ 

temperament appears appropriate. 

 

(10) Miscellaneous: 

Judge Segars-Andrews is married to Mark O. Andrews.  She has two 

children. 

 

Judge Segars-Andrews reported that she was a member of the following bar 

associations and professional associations: 

(a) S.C. Bar; 

(b) Charleston County Bar. 

 

Judge Segars-Andrews provided that she was a member of the following 

civic, charitable, educational, social, or fraternal organizations: 

(a) St. Andrews Church.  I was on the vestry for 3 years; 

(b) I received recognition from the S.C. House for my 10 years of 

volunteer service to the Charleston County Juvenile Drug Court. 

 

The Lowcountry Citizen’s Committee on Judicial Qualification found Judge 



 

 

Segars-Andrews to be “Well-Qualified” for each of the nine evaluative 

criteria: constitutional qualifications, ethical fitness, professional and 

academic ability, character, reputation, physical health, mental stability, 

experience, and judicial temperament.  

 

(11) Commission Members’ Comments: 

Based upon the Commission’s finding under the discussion of Ethical Fitness, 

the Commission finds Judge Segars-Andrews unqualified. 

 

Sen. Floyd Nicholson concurs with the Findings of the Commission under 

Ethical Fitness. 

 

Chairman Glenn F. McConnell’s Comments: 

The entire basis of our judicial system is the oft repeated maxim “justice is 

blind.”  Nowhere is that maxim more relevant than in the family court 

system where the buffer of a jury of one’s peers is absent.  In family court, 

the integrity and impartiality of a judge are paramount.  Not only must a 

judge referee the case, he or she must render a verdict.  In order to do so 

and have the ruling respected, a judge must be above any reasonable 

question of impartiality and impropriety.  It is that notion of impartiality that 

is the linchpin of the entire Canons of Judicial Conduct. 

 

Canon 2 of the Code of Judicial Conduct, found in Rule 501 of the South 

Carolina Appellate Court Rules provides that, “A Judge Shall Avoid 

Impropriety and the Appearance of Impropriety in All of the Judge’s 

Activities.”  Canon 2A states, “A judge shall respect and comply with the 

law and shall act at all times in a manner that promotes public confidence in 

the integrity and impartiality of the judiciary.”  The commentary to Canon 2A 

indicates that the “test for appearance of impropriety is whether the conduct 

would create in reasonable minds a perception that the judge's ability to 

carry out judicial responsibilities with integrity, impartiality, and competence 

is impaired.” 

 

In the case of Simpson v. Simpson, the appearance of impartiality was 

shattered by the actions of Judge Segars-Andrews.  The Judge rejected a 

motion made by Mr. Simpson’s attorney that she recuse herself because of 

her husband’s firm’s involvement with opposing counsel.  Then, she orally 

recused herself on her own motion after conferring with her husband about 

his dealings with opposing counsel.  After receiving an expert affidavit from 

opposing counsel indicating a duty that she hear the case, she abruptly 

reversed course, continued with the case, and, although ordering an 

equitable distribution that seemed to favor the husband, actually saddled him 

with debts and responsibilities for child care that led him into bankruptcy. 

 



 

 

While the Commission does not sit as an appellate body to review a judge’s 

decisions, it is within the Commission’s authority to determine if a judge 

meets the high standards of ethical fitness to dispense justice in this State.  

In light of the standard enunciated in Canon 2A and its commentary, Judge 

Segars-Andrews’ conduct would create within a reasonable mind the 

perception that her ability to carry out judicial responsibilities with integrity, 

impartiality, and competence was impaired.  A recitation of some aspects of 

the Simpson matter is necessary to understand why Mr. Simpson felt he did 

not receive a fair trial. 

 

Initially, Mr. Simpson and his attorney, Mr. McKenzie, were unaware that 

there was a significant past financial dealing between the law firm of the 

judge’s spouse and the opposing counsel.  At the Commission’s public 

hearing on November 4, 2009, they testified that the Judge received instant 

messages during the presentation of their case on February 14, 2006.  

Affidavits were presented with Mr. Simpson’s complaint by his aunt and an 

assistant to Mr. McKenzie that they noticed the judge’s computer “dinging” 

as if receiving messages while Mr. Simpson’s case was being presented and 

that there was not a similar distraction two days later when the wife’s case 

was presented in court.  In addition, Mr. McKenzie testified that he noticed 

the Judge signing a large Valentine’s Day card while on the bench during the 

presentation of Mr. Simpson’s case. 

 

The case had almost reached its conclusion when Mr. Simpson and his 

attorney discovered a connection between the opposing counsel and the law 

firm of the judge’s spouse and asked the judge to recuse herself.  The judge 

denied the motion, but asked her husband about the matter and was 

reminded of the significant financial dealing, a recent six-figure legal fee paid 

to the judge’s spouse and his firm.  Then, on her own motion, the judge 

orally recused herself. 

 

In failing to disclose this relationship at the beginning of the trial, Judge 

Segars-Andrews denied the parties the opportunity to decide whether her 

impartiality was an issue.  When she orally recused herself, she 

acknowledged, and Mr. Simpson and his attorney felt confirmation, that 

there was an appearance of impartiality.  By subsequently reversing her 

course and ruling that she had a duty to hear the case based on a 

memorandum and affidavit submitted by opposing counsel’s expert, Judge 

Segars-Andrews further clouded the question about her impartiality. 

 

Despite the facts that the divorce was granted on the basis of the wife’s 

adultery and that the husband had to assume the custody and care of the 

two minor children, the husband was forced to pay a higher debt from the 

marital assets and also to assume half of the wife’s attorney’s fees and 



 

 

costs.  Mrs. Simpson’s attorneys’ legal fees were over $160,000, while Mr. 

Simpson’s legal fees were less than $9,000, more than 20 times Mr. 

Simpson’s legal fees.  Mr. Simpson complained that, even though the marital 

property was divided with him receiving 60 percent and his wife receiving 

40 percent, the portion he received carried a heavy debt, thus reducing the 

amount he received to less than 60 percent.  According to the Final Order of 

Equitable Distribution, dated June 22, 2006, Mr. Simpson was required to 

assume two loans of $133,500 and $101,000 (total of $234,500), while his 

wife was allocated a credit card debt of $8,000. 

 

The following factors demonstrated to Mr. Simpson that Judge Segars-

Andrews was not impartial to him or his attorney in the trial of this case: (1) 

Judge Segars-Andrews’ acknowledgement of her husband’s prior business 

relationship with the wife’s attorney, which was not disclosed prior to the 

trial; (2) the manner of the property distribution; (3) the disproportionate 

amount of the wife’s attorney fees he was ordered to pay in light of his own 

attorney fees; and (4) the inattentiveness of the Judge during the 

presentation of his case.  While we cannot presume to decide whether the 

ruling in this case was legally correct, we cannot discount what Mr. Simpson 

reasonably believes, especially when the circumstantial evidence could 

readily justify that belief.  I also believe that any reasonable person in the 

public in similar circumstances to Mr. Simpson could also believe that justice 

in this case was not administered fairly.  This is the test enunciated in the 

commentary to Canon 2A.  This appearance of impropriety leads to lack of 

faith in the system, and I believe the Commission must endeavor to ensure 

that the public believes that justice will be administered in an even manner 

without regard to who appears in the court or who represents them. 

 

The Canons impose a burden on judges to keep informed of the personal and 

economic interests of the judge and the judge’s spouse as well as requiring 

them to vigilantly monitor personal and professional affiliations in order to 

avoid conflicts of interest.  Judge Segars-Andrews should have been very 

alert to this duty, given that her husband was a practicing attorney in a law 

firm, a matrimonial mediator in domestic relation cases in the family court, 

and might share fees with attorneys appearing before her.  The reason for 

the rule requiring judges to keep informed of personal and economic interests 

seems clear: a judge must know whether there is an actual conflict of 

interest or whether there could be the appearance of a conflict that could 

reasonably cause a litigant to question the judge’s impartiality.  That decision 

is not solely for the judge, but is one for those people who appear in that 

judge’s court.  If a person reasonably believes that a judge has even the 

appearance of impropriety in a matter, then not only does that judge’s ruling 

become suspect, but also the motives and operations of the entire judicial 

system are doubted.  We cannot afford as a society to have people 



 

 

reasonably question the rulings in cases because a judge is deemed partial to 

a particular side.  It is the impartiality of the judiciary and not necessarily the 

rightness or wrongness of their orders that allows our society to be orderly.  

It is what allows our society to be ordered by the point of a pen rather than 

by the point of a gun barrel. 

 

The opposing counsel’s memorandum and affidavit that Judge Segars-

Andrews relied upon cannot be construed as neutral.  In responding to the 

opposing counsel’s submission, Mr. Simpson’s attorney pointed out that 

opposing counsel was aware of the relationship with the judge’s spouse’s 

law firm and did not disclose it.  By continuing to hear the Simpson matter, 

Judge Segars-Andrews caused even more questions about the appearance of 

impartiality in this case. 

 

Unfortunately, this issue may never have occurred if Judge Segars-Andrews 

kept informed of potential conflicts as required by the Canons and timely 

notified the parties.  At the hearing, Judge Segars-Andrews stated that if 

this issue had been raised at the beginning of the trial and a motion made, 

she would have recused herself, but since the issue only came up after the 

trial was substantially concluded, she believed that her hands were tied by 

the duty to hear this case.  The appearance of impropriety resulted from 

Judge Segars-Andrews’ lapse in notifying the parties of opposing counsel’s 

relationship with her spouse’s law firm and in her determining not to recuse 

herself, after making her own motion to do so, based on an argument 

submitted by the opposing counsel.  In light of these actions, it is sad, but 

easily understandable, that Mr. Simpson and his attorney should feel their 

case was tainted by a potential economic connection. 

 

The South Carolina Court of Appeals concluded that Judge Segars-Andrews 

was correct in her interpretation of the law concerning the merits of the case 

and her recusal.  Also, the Commission on Judicial Conduct, a body in which 

Judge Segars-Andrews serves as the vice-chairman, summarily dismissed the 

complaint filed against her.  While we considered both actions, those actions 

are not the issue.  Her ruling in this case, no matter how well-reasoned or 

correct, is under the pall of her ambiguous actions regarding her recusal.  Mr. 

Simpson now reasonably questions both her verdict and his faith in the 

administration of justice in South Carolina.  If the Commission has a seminal 

role, it is that the candidates we find qualified and nominated must be 

trusted implicitly to make their rulings without prejudice or bias.  

Unfortunately, because of Judge Segars-Andrews’ actions, Mr. Simpson 

does not trust that the Judge acted impartially in his case.  I believe each 

judge has a high responsibility to make sure the administration of justice not 

only is done right but also appears right. 

 



 

 

The issue here is whether a single episode warrants my finding that Judge 

Segars-Andrews is unqualified for continued judicial service.  We are all 

human and we all make mistakes.  In this instance, a mistake handled in a 

contradictory manner resulted in a litigant who had only one chance in our 

judicial system to lose faith in it and reasonably so.  Judges are trustees of 

the legal system, and their actions must always be above reproach.  This is a 

very high standard, but that is because their decisions carry so much weight.  

My guiding directive, in keeping faith with those who elected me, is that 

people are able to rely on the quality and integrity of judges.  Only if they do, 

can we have faith in the judgments of our courts.  Judge Segars-Andrews 

fell short of the standards we must expect from those who are elected to 

pass judgment on our citizens; therefore, I must come to the conclusion and 

vote that she is unqualified for the reasons listed above. 

 

Rep. F.G. Delleney, Jr., Senator John M. “Jake” Knotts, Jr., Rep. Alan 

Clemmons, and Mr. John Harrell concur with Senator McConnell’s 

comments. 

 

Mr. H. Donald Sellers Comments: 

 I readily acknowledge that everyone is human and makes mistakes.  It 

is particularly disturbing to me, however, that Judge Segars-Andrews 

refused to even acknowledge her mistake in handling the conflict issue in the 

Simpson case until after the Commission’s hearing was concluded and the 

vote on her qualifications cast.  Judge Segars-Andrews was asked during the 

hearing on at least two occasions if she now thought that her refusal to 

recuse herself created, at the very least, the appearance of impropriety after 

she (1) had announced her discovery of her husband’s prior dealings with 

Ms. Simpson’s counsel, and (2) had announced repeatedly on the record that 

she would recuse herself because of that apparent conflict.  Judge Segars-

Andrews refused to acknowledge what appeared to me to be the obvious.  I 

can only conclude that Judge Segars-Andrews still does not recognize the 

high ethical standards imposed upon judges to avoid even the appearance of 

impropriety.   

 Furthermore, it was also disturbing to me that Judge Segars-Andrews 

reversed her announced position regarding recusal on the basis of an 

affidavit from Professor Crystal, an “expert” retained by Ms. Simpson’s 

attorneys to render such an opinion.  Judge Segars-Andrews reversed herself 

on the basis of the opinion expressed in the Crystal affidavit and did so 

without giving Mr. Simpson’s attorney a meaningful opportunity to challenge 

Crystal’s opinions.  Whether the opinion of Professor Crystal was right or 

wrong was immaterial at that point in the proceedings because Judge 

Segars-Andrews’ reliance on it only added to the appearance of impropriety, 

which she had already recognized.  From the perspective of Mr. Simpson, 

Judge Segars-Andrews announced her decision and then reversed herself at 



 

 

the urging of the attorneys who themselves should have advised her and 

opposing counsel, before the trial began, of their prior relationships with her 

husband’s firm. 

 In my view, Judge Segars-Andrews does not recognize her duty to 

strive in every case to render justice in an impartial manner in fact and in 

appearance.  If litigants leave the courtroom feeling that their case has been 

decided by a biased judge, the system has failed.  For that reason, and for 

the reasons outlined in Senator McConnell’s comments, I cast my vote that 

Judge Segars-Andrews is not qualified to serve. 

 

Professor John P. Freeman’s Comments: 

 This matter grows out of two failed marriages in which the husbands, 

both farmers, were father and son.  The husbands’ farming operation was 

Simpson Farms, L.L.C., in which both husbands were members.  The father, 

William Robert Simpson, was divorced from his wife, Daisy, in 2004.  This 

divorce litigation will be called “Simpson I.”  The focal point for consideration 

of Judge Segars-Andrews’ qualification is her rulings in the second divorce 

case involving Mr. Simpson, Jr., which will be called “Simpson II.”   

 The lawyers in both Simpson divorce cases were the same, Jan 

Warner and James McLaren represented each wife, and Steven McKenzie 

and Scott Robinson represented each of the husbands.  An additional factual 

overlap is that Mr. Simpson, Jr., was a party defendant in Simpson I due to 

his ownership interest as a member of Simpson Farms, L.L.C.  Both he and 

his lawyers were thus involved in both Simpson divorce cases. 

 Judge Segars-Andrews had no involvement in Simpson I.  The Final 

Decree of divorce in that case was handed down by Judge Wright Turbeville.   

 The Simpson II case is the main focal point for present purposes.  Mr. 

Simpson, Jr., brought the case in Clarendon County Family Court. The style 

of the Simpson II case is Simpson v. Simpson, 2004-DR-14-243.  It involved 

Mr. Simpson, Jr., and his wife Becky.  Simpson II was instituted on July 30, 

2004, as an action for “Separate Maintenance and Support and for Approval 

of an Agreement” filed by the Mr. Simpson, Jr.  As originally planned by Mr. 

Simpson, Jr., Simpson II was not a true adversary proceeding.  Mrs. 

Simpson had been induced to sign a “Pro Se Answer” at the time the 

complaint was filed.  The answer she filed had been drafted by her 

husband’s lawyer.  Appellate Court R. 57, ¶ 2.  [Hereinafter, cites to the 

Appellate Court Record in Simpson II, are cited R. __.] Under the Agreement, 

Mrs. Simpson gave up claims to substantial marital assets.   

 The Agreement was initially approved by the Family Court, but was 

later challenged by Mrs. Simpson for various reasons, including issues 

pertaining to her competence to enter into the Agreement in light of her 

“medical disorders and medications” (she had been diagnosed with bi-polar 

and panic disorders), nondisclosures by Mr. Simpson, Jr., and her contention 

that “there had been frauds perpetrated against both the Defendant and the 



 

 

Court.”  Mrs. Simpson, who initially was pro se, retained counsel after the 

Agreement in Simpson II was approved by the Court.  Judge McFadden, who 

had initially approved the Simpson II Agreement, subsequently set it aside in 

an order dated January 8, 2005.  R. 57-61.   

 I call attention to the background concerning the Agreement between 

the parties in Simpson II because, in my opinion, had the Agreement not 

been executed and later challenged and then thrown out by Judge 

McFadden, Mr. Simpson, Jr.’s, attack on Judge Segars-Andrews 

qualifications matter would not have arisen.  I say this because, in my 

opinion, absent that Agreement, the split between husband and wife in 

Simpson II would have been 60:40 in the husband’s favor, with each side 

paying their own fees.  Had this occurred, I doubt Mr. Simpson, Jr., would 

have raised any complaint about the judge’s fairness.  Why Judge Segars-

Andrews assessed Mr. Simpson, Jr., $78,000 to cover half of his wife’s 

legal fees was discussed by her at the hearing before the Commission.  

Judge Segars-Andrews testified: 

Then I go to the issue of attorneys' fees.  What has not come out is 

that initially Mr. Simpson had his wife sign an agreement.  That 

agreement gave her, I believe, and I don't remember exactly like, 35- 

or $40,000 all.  And this was an estate worth [$]7- or $800,000.  So 

she had to hire attorneys to have that agreement overturned, so she 

could get some assets. 

 

That is -- if this case had come up without that fact, he probably 

would have not – I would have not ordered him to pay any attorneys' 

fees except a little bit for the experts because they gave me the 

information that I had to deal with. . . .  

 

If he had not had her sign that agreement, he would have prevailed on 

every issue, and I would not have ordered attorneys' fees.  But 

[because of] having her sign the agreement where she had to hire 

attorneys to overturn it[,] [s]he did prevail because she did end up 

getting her 40 percent of the whole.  And I, following the rules of 

Family Court, the statute and the case law, I had to order attorneys' 

fees.  Commission Hearing Tr.  11/14/09 P.M., 24:14 to 25:19. 

 

 By the time Judge Segars-Andrews came on the scene, the 

Agreement, created on behalf of Mr. Simpson, Jr., to eliminate his wife’s 

rights to substantial marital assets, had already been set aside.4 The husband 

                                      

 
4 The Agreement came up before Judge Segars-Andrews based on the husband’s contention he 

should be given credit for money he paid his wife under the voided Agreement.  As to this 

contention, Judge Segars-Andrews ruled:  “The Court finds that the agreement was unconscionable 



 

 

had already been granted a divorce based on the wife’s adultery.  The wife’s 

adultery evidently occurred after she had been induced to enter into the 

Agreement mentioned in the preceding paragraph.  The issues Judge Segars-

Andrews ruled on concerned custody, child support, visitation, equitable 

division, and attorney's fees and costs.   

 The Family Court hearing in Simpson II covering those issues was held 

on February 14 and 16, 2006.  A Consent Order dated March 7, 2006, 

resolved the issues of custody and visitation. On March 13, 2006, the Court 

issued detailed written instructions for a Final Order on all remaining issues 

and requested that Mrs. Simpson’s counsel, Mr. Warner and Mr. McLaren, 

prepare and submit a proposed Order consistent with those instructions. R. 

367-70.   

 The fee award approved by Judge Segars-Andrews following the trial 

in Simpson II in favor of the wife to be paid by the husband was 

approximately $78,000, plus $5,000 to pay for the wife’s experts.5  The 

factual representations in the wife’s fee petition considered by Judge Segars-

Andrews were never disputed by Mr. Simpson, Jr.’s, lawyers.  Stated 

differently, no evidence was presented in Simpson II showing that the fees 

sought by counsel for Mrs. Simpson were unreasonable.  Earlier, in the 

related Simpson I case, by an order dated February 17, 2005, Judge 

Turbeville had ordered Mr. Simpson, Jr.’s, father to pay $85,000 toward his 

wife’s fees.  This was in addition to $15,000 the husband in Simpson I was 

ordered to pay at hearing held in March 28, 2003.  Thus, in Simpson I, Mr. 

Simpson, the father, had been ordered to pay $100,000 toward his wife’s 

legal fees.  I mention this to show that the fee approved by Judge Segars-

Andrews in Simpson II was not just unchallenged, it also was in line with a 

fee award granted on behalf of Mrs. Simpson’s lawyers in Simpson I.  

Simpson I, of course, was a somewhat related case by that had been 

decided earlier in Clarendon County Family Court by a different judge.   

 Subsequently, and prior to the court’s issuance of a definitive Final 

Order, on April 12, 2006, the husband filed a Notice of Motion and Motion 

for a New Trial Based Upon the Failure of Defendants' Counsel to Disclose 

the Court's Conflict of Interest.  That motion was based upon the contention 

that Judge Segars-Andrews was disqualified because her husband’s law 

partner, Lon Shull of the Charleston Bar, had rendered an affidavit fourteen 

                                                                                                                        

 
and that Plaintiff would have otherwise been supporting Wife during this period. This Court 

concludes that the Husband should be given no credit for this.”    R. 115.   
5 Mr. Simpson appeared to contend before the Commission that the award of $78,000 in fees was 

particularly improper because he had already been ordered to pay, by Judge Myers, $37,500 as an 

advance for attorneys fees.  However, Judge Segars-Andrews ruled that the $37,500 would be 

treated as an advance of her equitable distribution proceeds, meaning that Mr. Simpson was given 

credit for the $37,500 payment in figuring the amount owed to Mrs. Simpson out of her 40 percent 

of marital assets.   



 

 

months earlier in support of the fee petition submitted by Messrs. McLaren 

and Warner in the Simpson I litigation.  Mr. Shull’s Affidavit is attached as 

Exhibit 1.  So nothing is lost in translation, the grounds asserted in Mr. 

Simpson, Jr.’s, New Trial Motion are reproduced in Exhibit 2 hereto.   

 In an affidavit he filed in support of his motion, Mr. Simpson, Jr., 

testified he had been a party to his parents’ divorce case (Simpson I) in 

which the Shull affidavit was filed, and that he  

did not realize until after the close of this case, that Mr. Shull was in 

fact the partner of Mr. Mark O. Andrews, Esquire, who is the husband 

of the Honorable F. P. Segars-Andrews, the trial Judge who heard the 

above captioned matter. I believe that this is a conflict of interest for 

Judge Segars-Andrews to have heard this matter in light of the 

involvement of her husband's firm in the prior action to which I was a 

party. This matter was well-known to defense counsel in this case, 

Jan L. Warner, Esquire, and James T. McLaren, Esquire, as they 

represented my wife, Becky H. Simpson, in the above captioned 

matter as well as my mother, Daisy Simpson, in the prior divorce case 

to which I was a party and in which Mr. Shull submitted an Affidavit 

in support of their Affidavit for Attorney's Fees. This matter was not 

disclosed to myself or to my attorneys prior to trial and, quite frankly, 

was not brought to the Court's attention by defense counsel. I believe 

that this situation creates a conflict of interest, or at least the 

appearance of impropriety, which should have been brought not only 

to the Court's attention, but also to my attention or to that of my 

attorneys prior to the hearing in this matter so that we would have 

had full opportunity to have disclosure about that matter. Had I known 

this prior to this matter being filed, I would have filed a Motion asking 

Judge F. P. Segars-Andrews to recuse herself and ask that this case 

be reassigned to a different Judge. This information was not 

discovered until after the close of this case, and therefore I did not 

possess the requisite knowledge to waive this potential conflict at any 

time prior to or during the trial in this matter. For the reasons set forth 

hereinabove, I would request that Judge F. P. Segars-Andrews recuse 

herself from this matter and grant our Motion for a New Trial in front 

of another Judge.   

 

R. 227-28. 

 

 I note in passing that Mr. Shull’s affidavit (Exhibit 1 hereto) does more 

than simply opine on a reasonable fee number for Messrs. Warner and 

McLaren on the facts of Simpson I.  It also excoriates Mr. Simpson’s father 

for “deception, delay and obfuscation” ¶ 24, and refers to “the apparent 

conspiracy of a father and son.”  ¶ 26.  In the affidavit Mr. Shull identifies 

himself as a partner in the firm of Andrews and Shull, and each page of the 



 

 

affidavit in the court record has a fax header indicating it was sent from the 

Andrews & Shull firm.  I further note there is no evidence that Judge Segars-

Andrews was aware of Mr. Shull’s involvement in the prior case until it was 

brought to her attention by Mr. Simpson, Jr.’s, lawyer after the Simpson II 

case was tried.   

 The following recital of what happened next is taken from pp. 9-10 of 

the husband’s brief on the recusal issue before the Court of Appeals: 

 

 A hearing was scheduled on April 14, 2006, in Sumter, South 

Carolina. (R. p. 133).  At said hearing, the Court denied the 

Appellant's Motion for recusal; however, the Court sua sponte made 

her own motion regarding recusal. (R. p. 135, lines 6-16). The Court 

stated the following: "I denied that motion; however, once it was 

mentioned –I mentioned this to my husband, I was told something 

that I had forgotten-Mr. McLaren and my husband's law firm has also 

been involved in another matter together that does not-not involving a 

small amount of money, and it is something that if I had remembered 

that I would have disclosed and asked you initially if you wanted me 

to recuse myself. I did not [think about] that so I'm going to have to 

recuse myself. You all have to [r]etry the case." (R. p. 135, lines 6-

14). The Court did not disclose the amount or the nature of the 

relationship. However, on page five (5) of the transcript the Court 

states: "....You know. and just-I mean, I just do not think in good 

conscience-I mean, that is not a small amount of money...." (R. p. 

137, lines 1-2). The Court goes on to say: "I mean, if you all want to 

do some research on it, I'll be glad to look at some research, but just 

don't think-I think it should have been disclosed; I didn't think about 

it, I didn't disclose it, and I don't see how I can remedy that." (R. p. 

135, lines 23-65 and R. p. 138, line 1). Also, the Court stated the 

following: I'll be glad to look at anything, but I'll tell you, I've been-I 

have looked at the Rules over and over." (R. p. 139, lines 14-18). 

 

On April 26, 2006, the Respondent's attorney filed a 

Memorandum of Law with an affidavit attached from Nathan Crystal, 

Esquire (the Memo and affidavit were sent to the Court and opposing 

counsel on April 24, 2006) who offered his professional opinion 

regarding the Court's recusal. (R. p. 307). On April 25, 2006, the 

Appellant wrote the Court through his attorney and responded to the 

Memorandum and Affidavit. (R. p. 345). On May 3, 2006, the Court 

issued a two paragraph Memorandum to the parties. The 

Memorandum states as follows: "After reviewing the memorandum 

provided from the defendant's counsel in this matter and the Canons, 

this court determines that it has a duty to rule in this case and that 

there was no duty to disclose the working relationship between 



 

 

McLaren and Andrews and Shull" (R. p. 132). On May 9, 2006, the 

Appellant's counsel informed the Court that the Appellant objected to 

the proposed Order and requested that the Court wait until the 

transcript arrived prior to signing the proposed recusal Order. (R. p. 

350). On May 11, 2006, the Appellant wrote the Court and provided 

the Court with a copy of the April 14, 2006, transcript. The Appellant 

listed the objections to the Order and requested that the Court clarify 

and make changes to the Order. (R. p. 352). On May 22, 2006, the 

Court signed the Order denying recusal without any changes as 

requested by the Appellant. (R. p. 88). On June 12, 2006, the 

Appellant filed a Motion for the Court to Reconsider, Set Aside, Alter, 

and/or Amend or Clarify its Order. (R. p. 330). Said Motion was heard 

via telephone on July 26, 2006, with the Appellant present along with 

the attorneys for both the Appellant and Respondent. The Court 

denied the Motion, and the Order from said Motion hearing was filed 

in the Clerk of the Family Court for Clarendon County on August 23, 

2006. (R. p. 128). 

 

 At the Commission’s hearing into Judge Segars-Andrews’ 

qualifications, the chief ground advance in opposition by Mr. Simpson, Jr., 

and his lawyer was her failure to recuse herself due to an alleged appearance 

of impropriety arising from the aforesaid facts.6   

 There is no dispute that Judge Segars-Andrews initially ruled that she 

needed to recuse herself based on the fact her husband had shared in a large 

fee earned through the efforts of her husband’s then law partner, Mr. Shull, 

and Mrs. Simpson’s lawyer, Jim McLaren in the recent past.  At the 

Commission’s hearing, Judge Segars-Andrews indicated that her husband’s 

share of the Shull-McLaren fee split was around $300,000.  The dollar 

                                      

 
6 At the hearing other purported grounds for finding Judge Segars-Andrews unfit to sit as a judge 

were alleged, including that Judge Segars-Andrews had been inattentive to the husband’s case at 

the hearing held on Valentine’s Day, February 14, 2006.  This alleged lack of judicial attention at 

the February 14 hearing was supposedly evidenced by her having a Valentine card with her on the 

bench, and by her allegedly receiving instant messages during the hearing held on that day.  No 

complaint was lodged as to her behavior at the February 16, 2006 hearing.  Judge Segars-Andrews 

admitted having a Valentine card on the bench on February 14, but denied instant messaging during 

court proceedings.  An affidavit from the court reporter likewise supported the judge on the instant 

messages contention.  Judge Segars-Andrews testified that when she tried the Simpson II case, “I 

probably did sign a Valentine card for my husband when I was there, but I paid very close attention 

and took very detailed notes.”  The Commission requested and received Judge Segars-Andrews’ 

computer generated notes from the bench for those two days.  My scrutiny of the notes shows no 

evidence of inattention to testimony or evidence by the Judge for either day.  I reject the contention 

that Judge Segars-Andrews failed to accord Mr. Simpson a fair hearing based on being pre-occupied 

or having her attention distracted.  In my judgment, the facts do not support the Valentine’s Day 

charges.   

 



 

 

amount had not been mentioned during the hearing in the Simpson II case, 

although, as recited above, Judge Segars-Andrews stated at the April 14, 

2006, Simpson hearing, accurately, that the sum was “not a small amount 

of money.”  Following receipt of the wife’s lawyers’ brief and Professor 

Crystal’s affidavit in support of non-recusal, Judge Segars-Andrews evidently 

concluded that legally she was not required to step aside.  Accordingly, she 

reversed herself and proceeded to issue a final order in the Simpson matter.  

The Court of Appeals affirmed that order, finding that Mr. Simpson, Jr., 

failed to establish that he was prejudiced by any alleged unprofessional 

conduct on the part of Judge Segars-Andrews.   

 A grievance subsequently was filed by Mr. Simpson, Jr., charging 

Judge Segars-Andrews with ethical misconduct as a judge.  The ethics 

charge was dismissed.  The text of both the ethical grievance and the ruling 

by the Supreme Court’s Office of Disciplinary Counsel were presented to the 

Commission for review. Mr. Simpson, Jr.’s, lawyer insinuated that the 

Commission simply rejected the grievance out of hand; the implication was 

that favoritism was shown by the disciplinary authorities in favor of Judge 

Segars-Andrews who was then serving as vice-chairman of the Commission 

on Judicial Discipline.  There was no proof of this charge. 

 The facts in issue are based on the written record from the two 

Simpson divorce cases and testimony and other evidence adduced at the 

Commission’s hearings.  In other words, there is a detailed written record 

reflecting what happened and when.  Thus, I do not believe there is really a 

dispute between me and my fellow members of the Commission about what 

happened concerning Judge Segars-Andrews’ involvement in Simpson II.  

The difference between my vote and that of the other nine members of the 

Commission lies in our different conclusions drawn from those facts.  My 

conclusions are as follows: 

 

1. I believe Judge Segars-Andrews acted in good faith in her conduct of 

the Simpson II case, in her handling of the recusal issue, and in her 

dealings with the Judicial Selection Commission.  I am unaware of any 

credible, competent evidence she had any actual bias or prejudice 

against Mr. Simpson, Jr., or that bias or prejudice influenced her 

decision. 

 

2. In my mind the chief difference between me and my fellow 

Commissioners rests on our different evaluation of her conduct once 

she announced her decision that she needed to recuse herself based 

on her husband having shared in a large fee generated in a case 

handled and resolved some time earlier by Mr. Shull and Mr. McLaren.   

 

3. I concur in the finding implicit in my fellow Commission members’ 

votes that Judge Segars-Andrews erred in reversing course following 



 

 

her announced position that recusal was necessary.  Her post-recusal 

decision reversing her prior judgment was, I believe, made in good 

faith.  It was based on the brief written by the wife’s lawyers and 

Professor Crystal’s accompanying affidavit.  Nonetheless, I beg to 

differ with her conclusion.  I think she was wrong in reversing course.  

I say this based on my belief that recusal is called for when there are 

facts that would lead a reasonable person to conclude that the 

independence of the judge might reasonably be questioned.  Here, 

Judge Segars-Andrews, who knew the underlying facts better than 

anyone, independently concluded on her own that she needed to step 

aside.  She announced her intent to recuse herself based on her belief 

there was “an appearance of impropriety.”  Commission Hearing Tr.  

11/14/09 P.M., 84:6-10.   

 

4. In my mind Judge Segars-Andrews made a mistake when, having 

decided independently that recusal was required, she failed to stick to 

her guns.  In other words, having decided she needed to step aside, 

she should have followed through and maintained her recusal.  This 

mistake was compounded when Judge Segars-Andrews reversed 

course without giving Mr. Simpson, Jr., and his lawyer a chance to be 

heard to rebut the position taken by Mrs. Simpson, et al.  At the 

Commission hearing, Judge Segars-Andrews conceded that in 

hindsight she should have held a hearing to announce her decision that 

she was not going to recuse herself.7  I note in passing that the 

procedure for Remittal of Disqualification under Canon 3 was not 

followed. 

 

5. Despite my disagreement with decisions made by Judge Segars-

Andrews in her handling of the Simpson II matter, I nonetheless have 

no hesitation in finding that she should be qualified and nominated for 

another term as Family Court Judge.  I hold this view for the following 

reasons: 

 

 First, as stated above, I believe she acted in good faith throughout 

this matter.  I do not believe that Mr. Simpson, Jr., is a victim of 

bias or prejudice.  Judge Segars-Andrews testified, “I did what I 

thought was right,” Commission Hearing Tr.  11/14/09 P.M., 

86:16.  I absolutely believe her.   

 

                                      

 
7 (Commission Hearing Tr. 11/4/09, P.M., 84:2-5)  “If I had to do it over again, sir, I would have 

called another hearing and let them know that I had reviewed things and that I had to change -- I 

was wrong.” 



 

 

 Second, I do not believe we have a right to expect judges to be 

perfect or never make mistakes.  All judges are human, and they 

will make mistakes.  The evidence is that Judge Segars-Andrews 

made a ruling that was upheld on appeal, and engaged in conduct 

which when challenged, was reviewed and found acceptable by 

Disciplinary Counsel.  There has been no showing of a pattern of 

misconduct or that Judge Segars-Andrews is otherwise unfit to 

serve as a judge.  In fact, putting aside the Simpson II flip-flop 

ruling, there is no credible evidence whatever casting doubt on her 

qualifications or overall performance in my estimation.    

 

 Third, I recognize that Mr. Simpson, Jr., believes he was treated 

unfairly, has lost faith in the system, etc.  This is regrettable.  At 

the same time, in an adversary system, it is common for one 

litigant or the other, and sometimes both, to believe they got less 

than they deserved in court.  Because judges are fallible, inevitably 

we will find well-meaning litigants who become the victims of an 

error of fact or law by a judge.  I do not minimize or downplay this 

problem.   

 

 Fourth, I am concerned about the precedential impact of a decision 

finding Judge Segars-Andrews unqualified.  For one thing, I believe 

she absolutely is qualified to be a Family Court judge.  Beyond that, 

I believe good judges need to be honest, competent, independent, 

and fearless.  They do not need to be infallible, which is fortunate, 

because none of them are.  The Commission in my judgment 

functions best in tandem with other credible institutions and 

procedures aimed at safeguarding the public, such as our appellate 

courts and our disciplinary systems for judges and lawyers.   

Without disparaging the good faith of any complainant, I worry that 

the Commission’s credibility will suffer if it becomes a sort of 

appellate court of last resort for people still anxious to attack 

judges after having already lost before ODC or in our appellate 

courts.  We live in a litigious society, particularly when it comes to 

family law matters.  There never will be a shortage of frustrated 

litigants who want to retry lost cases, placing blame on others, 

including the judges who sat at their trials. 

 

 Fifth, I call attention to an observation made by the United States 

Supreme Court in a case it decided.  The Court said litigants are 

entitled to “a fair trial but not a perfect one, for there are no 

perfect trials.” McDonough Power Equipment, Inc. v. Greenwood, 

464 U.S. 548, 553 (1984).  I take this observation to heart.  In 

terms of outcome, I believe Mr. Simpson, Jr., got a fair trial in 



 

 

Simpson II, though not a perfect one.  I believe also that the case 

was decided by a fair judge, albeit not a judge who in my eyes 

ruled perfectly.  I note that in determining whether a judicial 

candidate is qualified, it has never been necessary for a judge to 

establish that he or she is perfect 24/7 in every single respect.  In 

line with the United States Supreme Court’s comment about the 

dearth of perfect trials, I do not believe there are any perfect 

judges either.  I am confident that Judge Segars-Andrews, though 

not perfect, is a good judge, well deserving of the public’s trust.  I 

note that a letter she sent to the Commission following our hearing 

reflects her sincere regret, and a capacity to learn from this very 

difficult situation.  See Exhibit 3 hereto. 

 

 Finally, I note that the Judicial Selection Commission has nine 

evaluative criteria, and I am convinced that the totality of the 

evidence as to each criterion weighs heavily in Judge Segars-

Andrews’ favor, even taking into account the accusations leveled 

by Mr. Simpson, Jr., and his counsel.  I thus voted her qualified 

and believe she should be nominated for consideration by the 

General Assembly. 

 

Ms. Amy Johnson McLester and Rep. David J. Mack, III, concur with 

Professor Freeman’s findings. 

 

(12) Conclusion: 

The Commission, with a seven to three vote, found Judge Segars-Andrews 

not qualified for continued service as a Family Court judge based upon one 

of the nine evaluative criteria of ethical fitness.  Her term on the bench will 

end June 30, 2010. 
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CONCLUSION 

 

The Judicial Merit Selection Commission found Judge F.P. “Charlie” Segars-

Andrews to be Not Qualified for re-election to Family Court, Ninth Judicial 

Circuit, Seat 1. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 


